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ADDENDUM No. 2 TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 
 
Project: City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
 
Addendum Issue Date: December 11, 2015  
 
Issued for Bid Date: November 13, 2015 
 
Bid Due Date: January 6, 2016, 2:00pm (AK)  
 
Previous Addenda Issued: None 
 
Issued By: Alexandra West  
 PND Engineers, Inc. 
 1506 West 36th Avenue 
 Anchorage, Alaska 99503 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Notice to Bidders: 
Bidders must acknowledge receipt of this addendum prior to the date set for bid opening by one of the following 
methods: 
 

(1) By acknowledging receipt of this addendum on the bid submitted. 
(2) By fax which includes a reference to the project and addendum number. 
 

The bid documents require acknowledgment individually of all addenda to the drawings and/or specifications.  This 
is a mandatory requirement and any bid received without acknowledgment of receipt of addenda may be classified 
as not being a responsive bid.  If, by virtue of this addendum it is desired to modify a bid already submitted, such 
modification may be made by fax provided such a fax makes reference to this addendum and is received prior to the 
opening date specified above. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
The contract Documents for the above project are amended as follows (all other terms and conditions remain 
unchanged): 
 
ITEM 1 
Contract:  City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
Section: 00030 Invitation to Bid 
 
Sealed bids will now be received until 2:00 p.m. (AKST) on January 6, 2016 and then will be publicly opened and 
read. Any bids received after the time and date specified will not be considered. 
 
ITEM 2 
Contract:  City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
Section: 00030 Invitation to Bid 
 
Bids may now be submitted to the City of Unalaska (as shown in the bid documents) and to PND Anchorage’s 
office at: 
 
PND Engineers, Inc. 
Attention: Alexandra West 
1506 W. 36th Ave. 
Anchorage, AK 99503 
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ITEM 3 
Contract:  City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
Section: Pre-bid Meeting Minutes 
 
See the attached pre-bid meeting minutes. 
 
ITEM 4 
Contract:  City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
Section: 00300 Bid Form 
 
Replace Bid Proposal with attached. Note updated order of additive alternates. 
 
ITEM 5 
Contract:  City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
Section: Project Plans 
 
See the attached updated general notes. 
 
ITEM 6 
Contract:  City of Unalaska Lake & River Restoration Projects 
Section: Bidder Questions 
 
The following lists bidder questions and corresponding responses. 
 
1. There was discussion on relaxation of the E-1 material requirements. Will this be of the degradation 

value, gradation? Does this just apply to the E-1, or to all rock? 
 
The E-1 material degradation value and sodium sulfate requirements have been relaxed. See Sheet 4 
of the revised project plans (rev. 1). 
 

2. Can you take a look at the pipe bedding material (3” minus)? Have used D1 in the past and it’s much 
easier to work with and does not damage the pipe. This was used for the water treatment plant 
construction. 
 
Pipe bedding material will remain as specified in the plans. 
 

3. Are updated drawings coming soon? 
 
Updated drawings will be submitted in future addenda.  
 

4. There is a requirement for use of recycled projects? 
 
Note Supplementary Conditions issued in Addendum #1. Preference must be given to products 
containing recycled materials identified in guidelines developed by the EPA. Exceptions may be 
made. See Supplementary Conditions. 
 

5. Are DBE solicitations required? Do they have to go through the full State process? 
 
DBE solicitations are required. The contractor must demonstrate a good faith effort. Please reference 
the DBE forms and the supplemental conditions from Addendum #1. 
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6. Is there a DBE goal? 
 
Good faith effort. 
 

7. There are “acts” referenced in Appendix D. Can it be assumed they are all taken care of? Is there 
anything that we are waiting on? 
 
Project permits are anticipated prior to the NTP date. The contractor must follow all local, state, and 
federal laws and regulations. 
 

8. Is Phase I (Stormwater Management Program Plan) completed? 
 
Phase I was completed in early 2015. 
 

9. What is the source for the beach wildrye? 
 
Follow the Beach Wildrye Planting Guide for Alaska by Stoney Wright for planting of beach 
wildrye sprigs. Sprigs can be harvested from within the project limits using hand tools (i.e. shovels). 
Actual locations of harvesting will be identified in the field. Ensure that beach wildyre clumps for 
sprig division are harvested sporadically from well-established areas as to not create a bare area 
exceeding 2’x2’.  
 

10. There does not appear to be a spec for the “clean 3” material” in the weir section, that overlays the 
rip rap. Detail “B-B weir section”, sheet 7. Is this meant to be drain rock? Will you be providing a 
gradation spec? 
 
Material should be Select Material Type A. 
 

11. On sheet 7 and 8, SD-2 calls for a type 1 SDMH, SD-0 does not specify what type, and SD-4 
specifies to be a 48” catch basin. There are no details for a catch basin, and we need information on 
SD-0. 
 
SD-0 is SDMH, Type 1. Provide a SDMH Type 1 at structure SD-4. 
 

12. There are two riprap slope protections required on Lower Iliuliuk River (see sheet 16); however, it is 
difficult to get an accurate dimension by scaling only. Is there more information on the quantity 
needed at these locations? 
 
Reference bid requirements regarding site visit prior to bid. Riprap will be installed according to the 
typical detail, but remaining outside of wetlands. Volume may vary due to wetland extents.  
 

13. Please confirm that all items listed in “storm drain profile” detail on sheet 10 are to be newly 
installed by contractor. The other sheets say “furnish and install” and this sheet does not. Also, are 
we to assume using existing material to rebuild roadway excavation in Overland Drive at this 
location? 
 
All items listed in “storm drain profile” on Sheet 10 are to be newly installed by the contractor. See 
typical trench detail. 
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14. Sheet 13, what is the width of the class II rip rap basin? The typical on sheet 18 shows the slope as 
“varies:1” ratio. 
 
The basin drawings are being revised and will be included in the next addendum. 
 

15. Sheet 7, there is an existing timber shelter that will need to be temporarily relocated for the SD 
installation. What is the structure foundation? Are any pictures available? 
 
The following photo displays the timber shelter. Please reference the bid requirements for a site visit 
prior to bidding. 

 
 

16. On the L&R project, what is going to be the basis of award, as far as the alternates? For instance, 
will alternates be chosen sequentially until the budget is reached, or will the City of Unalaska pick 
and choose which alternate they want after the base bid? 
 
The granting agency provided a prioritization schedule for the order in which additive alternates will 
be selected. Additive alternates have been prioritized numerically with Additive Alternate #1 being 
the first to be selected, and Additive Alternate #6 being the last. The basis for award will be lowest 
bid price for the Base Bid plus all the Additive Alternates selected for award. 
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17. Getting the bid documents to the City of Unalaska has proven difficult in the past due to unreliable 
flights for mail/gold streak. Can the bid requirements be changed to allow for bids to be received at 
PND’s office in Anchorage? This will allow better opportunities for contractors not based in 
Unalaska to bid on this project, providing more competitive numbers to the owner. 
 
Bids will now be accepted at PND’s office in Anchorage as well as the City of Unalaska. 
 

18. Is there a disposal site available for unsuitable material? If so, where? 

See General Notes (sheet 4) of plans, Section 5A – Site Demolition & Preparation. “Aggregate 
material to be disposed of shall be stockpiled at the landfill.” 
 

19. How is the relocation of utilities to accommodate the work paid for? 
Relocation of utilities will be part of the associated project’s lump sum. 
 

20. Is onsite compaction testing included as part of the 3rd party testing requirement or will the owner 
take care of it? 
 
If onsite compaction testing is performed it will be provided by the owner. 
 

21. Is there a designated site on island to get the beach wildrye grass sprigs from? 

See answer to question #9. 

22. Sheet 6 has a note to “Grade & Resurface with Select Material Type A Between Top of Swale and 
Armstrong Court. See Detail Sheet 17”.  The detail on Sheet 17 for the Armstrong Drainage Swale 
does not state the thickness of the new Select Material, Type A.  How thick is the Type A in this 
area?  Furthermore, we assume the existing material will require excavation prior to placement of the 
new Type A? 
 
Material will be removed/added as required to obtain necessary grade. Thickness of Select Material 
Type A varies. A minimum thickness of 6” is required. This will be shown in the updated plans in 
future addenda. 
 

23. Sheet 6 (Additive Alternate #1) Scope of Work includes the placement of a 33’ long 12” Schedule 
40 Steel Pipe.  Does the City of Unalaska have some 12” steel piling materials that would be suitable 
for this installation that could be supplied for this Project? 
 
The City of Unalaska does not have pipe to use. 

 
24. In Addendum #1, the Geotechnical Report shows some bedrock requiring excavation for the 

installation of the storm drain line and catch basins along Overland Drive.  Is the use of explosives 
allowed for rock trenching? 
 
Explosives may be used for rock trenching at the contractor’s risk and awareness of the proximity to 
residences, commercial businesses, and utilities. 

 
25. Due to the installation of the Overland Drive Storm Drain, some of the shoulder and outside lane of 

Overland Drive will be excavated during the trenching.  We assume that the road prism will be 
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required to be re-built.  Please clarify with a detail showing these road prism thicknesses and types 
of material. 
 
See Typical Trench Section detail.  

 
26. There are notes on Sheets 11 & 13 of the plans that state “Estimated Water & Sewer Service 

Locations.  Contractor to Verify & Re-Locate if Required”.  We assume the “Sewer / Storm Drain 
Detail” on Sheet 18 is in regard to this requirement.  It is difficult to estimate the cost of this work if 
required prior to the bid.  As stated, it would require us to put a contingency in our bid for possibly 
performing this work.  On the other hand, if we don’t end up having to perform any modifications, 
then the City of Unalaska would have paid for work that wasn’t performed.  We would recommend 
that if the Water & Sewer Services Relocation work is required, then make it a Changed 
Condition.  This way, both parties have a clear understanding of the work required. 
 
The “Sewer/Storm Drain Detail” on Sheet 18 is not for the notes on Sheets 11 & 13. See Sheet 8. 

 
27. It is our understanding that the CESCL Class has been deleted in its entirety from the Project as per 

Addendum #1.  Please clarify. 
 
Correct. The AK-CESCL Class has been deleted from the Project per Addendum #1. 

 
28. We assume that the award of the Project is based on the total of the Base Bid & All of the Additive 

Alternates.  Please clarify. 
 
Reference response to question #16. 

 
 
 

 
END OF ADDENDUM 

 
Future addenda are planned and will address, though not be limited, to the following items (for 
information only, contents of the addenda may change without notice): 
 

1. Updated project drawings 
2. Project permits 
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PRE-BID MEETING MINUTES 

December 4, 2015 
2:00 PM 

1-800-315-6338; Code: 141100# 
 
 

Prepared by:  PND Engineers, Inc. 
 
Introduction & Project Overview: Paul Kendall, PND 
 
Parties attended included: 

• PND Engineers, Inc. 
• City of Unalaska Department of Public Works 
• Eklutna Services, Inc. 
• Northern Alaska Contracting 
• Brechan Construction 
• Ridge Contracting 
• TZ Engineering 

 
The City of Unalaska is seeking a Contractor to provide various drainage system improvements for 
lake and river restoration during the early 2016 construction season. The base bid will involve 
construction of the Steward Road Pond Improvements. Additive alternates include: 
 

• Armstrong Court Drainage Improvements,  
• Overland Drive Diversion Culvert,  
• Overland Drive Storm Drain System,  
• Overland Drive Basin Improvements,  
• Overland Drive Outlet Swale Improvements  
• and the Lower Iliuliuk River Improvements (not grant funded).  

 
 In addition to the base bid, the City will award additive alternates based on available funding and 
best value to the City. The contract requires that all work (base bid and add alts) be completed by 
May 30th, 2016.  
 
  
Review of Project Documents: Paul Kendall, PND 
 

1) Important Project Dates 
a. Bidder Questions Due – Wednesday, December 9th 2015, 2:00pm 
b. Bid Due Date – Tuesday, December 15th 2015, 2:00pm 

i. Bids are to be submitted to the City Hall in Unalaska. Teleconference will 
be available using the same number and code used for the pre-bid 
meeting. 

c. Approval to Award from Council – December 22nd, 2015.  
d. Notice of Award – December 23rd, 2015 
e. Notice to Proceed – Tentatively January 7th, 2016 
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f. Substantial Completion – May 15th, 2016 for Base Bid & Additive Alternates 
i. Applies to all additive alternates 

1. Due to grant conditions, exceptions will not be accommodated for 
weather related delays. 

g. Final Completion – May 30th, 2016  
 

2) Review of Project Documents Issued to Date 
a. As the contract documents state “This project is funded, partly or wholly, by the 

Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), U.S. Department of Interior and the State of 
Alaska’s Department of Commerce, Community, and Economic Development 
under the Coastal Impact Assistance Program grant (CIAP) (10-CIAP-023) 
awarded to the City of Unalaska under “Unalaska Lake Restoration Phase I 
Stormwater Management Plan” 

i. Grant Requirements: 
1. A new set of supplemental conditions was released with 

amendment #1. The following submittals are required by the 
granting agency: 

a. Performance Bond for the full amount of the contract. 
b. Payment Bond for the full amount of the contract. 
c. Necessary Power of Attorney forms. 
d. Certificates of Insurance as required by the Supplemental 

Conditions with limits, endorsements, and provisions as 
set forth therein. 

e. Copies of City of Unalaska Business License. 
f. Copies of State of Alaska Business License. 
g. Copies of State of Alaska Contractors License. 
h. Return of three (3) signed copies of the Agreement. 
i. List of persons or entities acting as Subcontractors and 

dollar amounts of subcontracts. 
j. Contractor and all subcontractors System for Award 

Management Registration. 
k. Contractor and all subcontractors Drug Free Workplace 

Policy Statement provided to employees. 
l. Contractor and all subcontractors Whistleblower Act 

Statement provided to employees. 
m. SAMs Registration documentation for Contractor and all 

subcontractors.  
n. Transparency Act Information for Contractor and each 

subcontractor that meets the $25,000 threshold. Including 
contact information, DUNS number, and executive 
compensation data if applicable.  

o. Subcontractor Byrd Anti-Lobby Certificates for 
subcontracts over $100,000. 

2. Additionally, all product submittals shall include the RCRA 6002 
vendor certification form and a vendor certification statement for 
Buy American Requirements. 
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b. Description of each project 
i. Base Bid – Steward Road Pond 

1. This task involves the re-routing of the nearby storm drain system 
and installation of an earthen berm to create a pond area. 
Construction requires the installation of approximately 320LF of 
CPEP storm drain pipe, several storm structures and placement of 
fill to create the earthen berm. Please note the picnic table 
structure has been removed from the original design in addendum 
#1. E-1 is required for surfacing over trenches. The quality spec 
(notable degradation and sulfate soundness) will be relaxed such 
that material both sources on island will be acceptable. 
 

ii. Add. Alt #1 – Armstrong Court Drainage Improvements 
1. This additive alternate, near the corner of Armstrong Court and 

Broadway Avenue includes the installation of approximately 
160LF of double-sided W-beam guardrail, boulders, regrading of 
the site to include a seeded V-ditch, culvert and coir logs. 
 

iii. Add. Alt #2 – Overland Drive Diversion Culvert 
1. This additive alternate along Overland Drive involves the 

installation of a 48”Ø SDMH and a new ~45LF 18” CPEP 
culvert. Riprap protection is required at both the inlet and outlet.  
The easement for this culvert and its outlet protection is currently 
in review. 
 

iv. Add. Alt #3 – Overland Drive Storm Drain System 
1. This additive alternate includes the installation of a storm drain 

system along Overland Drive from the intersection of Broadway 
Avenue to the termination point uphill to the east. The system is 
roughly 500LF of 18” CPEP storm drain pipe with (4) 48” 
SDMHs. This additive alternative also includes an earthen 
detention pond at the new storm drain inlet and associated riprap 
erosion protection in the pond and associated ditch. A new 
driveway is also included in this additive alternative.  
 

v. Add. Alt #4 – Overland Drive Basin Improvements 
1. This additive alternate involves reconstructing the existing basin 

at the intersection of Overland Drive and E. Broadway Avenue. 
The current basin has eroded due to high flows, bypassing the 
existing gabion check dams. The area will be regraded into a v-
ditch and protected by approximately 65 cubic yards of larger 
riprap. 
 

vi. Add. Alt #5 – Overland Drive Outlet Swale Improvements 
1. This additive alternate includes the installation of six checks dams 

in the existing outlet swale for the storm drain system. The check 
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dams, constructed of coir logs and 3” minus rock, are designed to 
provide additional sediment settlement in the outlet swale.  

vii. Add. Alt #6 – Lower Iliuliuk River Improvements 
1. This additive alternate, which is not grant funded, involves the 

installation of 1500LF coir logs and hydroseeding on the north 
bank. It also includes installation of riprap and beach wildrye 
grass sprigs as erosion protection in select locations along the 
northern river bank from Alyeska Seafoods to near the Russian 
Orthodox Cathedral.  
 

c. Wage Rates 
i. All works shall be paid prevailing wage rates as described in the State of 

Alaska LABORERS’ AND MECHANICS’ MINIMUM RATES OF 
PAY, Title 36, Public Contracts, AS 36.05 & AS 35.10 Wage and Hour 
Administration Pamphlet No. 600 – Latest Revision” with “The higher of 
the current minimum prevailing wage rates as published 10 days prior to 
the bid date by the Alaska Department of Labor or the Davis Bacon 
Determinations must be paid. The wages published on that date will 
prevail throughout the entire project regardless of the duration. Apprentice 
hiring requirements shall be as required by the Davis Bacon 
Determinations” 

3) Existing Site conditions 
i. Contractor is required to visit the project site and give due consideration 

to local traffic, housing logistics, and travel logistics. 
ii. Also note that Unalaska experiences frequent and dramatic changes in 

weather conditions which may affect construction schedules. Contractors 
are advised to consider ample weather days in their project scheduling.  

 
a. Bedrock Conditions 

i. Test pits were excavated along the proposed storm drain alignment 
along Overland Drive. A geotechnical memorandum outlining the 
results was included in Addendum #1. 

ii. As you can see bedrock was encountered in two test pits at depths of 
3.5’ bgs and 6’ bgs. Bedrock was not encountered in the other test pits. 
Contractors should be prepared for bedrock excavation if necessary. 

b. Easements 
i. The City is currently in the process of creating new drainage easements 

for the Overland culvert, storm drain system and basin improvements. 
They will be in place prior to NTP.  

4) Permits 
i. A nationwide permit application has been submitted to the USACE for 

filling wetlands at the Steward Road Pond improvements. The permit is 
expected prior to NTP.  

ii. Approval to construct applications have been submitted to ADEC for the 
storm sewer systems at Overland and Steward Road. Approvals should be 
in hand by NTP. 

5) Registration on Plan Holders List 



City of Unalaska      Pre-Bid Meeting Minutes 
Lake & River Restoration Projects 
DPW No. 14101 
  
  
  

  Page 5 of 5 

i. Please register on the Plan Holders list to ensure you receive all 
notifications and addenda. 

6) Construction Administration and Inspection 
i. The City intends to do on-site inspection during construction using Regan 

Engineering. PND will review RFIs, submittals, change orders, etc. 
7) Future Addenda anticipated Thursday, December 10th 2015  

a. Answers to Bidder Questions 
b. Update Grant required submittals as discussed above. 

 
 
Questions from Bidders (see attached) 
 
 
 
 
 



 
BID FORM 
 00300-7 

 
BID PROPOSAL 
City of Unalaska 

LAKE & RIVER RESTORATION PROJECTS 
 

Base Bid –LAKE & RIVER RESTORATION PROJECTS 
 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

1 
STEWARD ROAD DRAINAGE 
IMPROVEMENTS LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
 
TOTAL BASE BID  (NUMERICAL)   ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL BASE BID  (WRITTEN TEXT) ________________________________________ 
 
 
Additive Alternate #1 – OVERLAND DRIVE STORM DRAIN SYSTEM 

 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

AA1 
OVERLAND DRIVE STORM DRAIN 
SYSTEM LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #1  (NUMERICAL) ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #1  (WRITTEN TEXT)________________________________________ 
 
 
Additive Alternate #2 – OVERLAND DRIVE BASIN IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

AA2 
OVERLAND DRIVE BASIN 
IMPROVEMENTS LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #2  (NUMERICAL) ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #2  (WRITTEN TEXT)________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
BID FORM 
 00300-8 

Additive Alternate #3 – OVERLAND DRIVE OUTLET SWALE IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

AA3 
OVERLAND DRIVE OUTLET 
SWALE IMPROVEMENTS LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #3  (NUMERICAL) ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #3  (WRITTEN TEXT)________________________________________ 
 
 
Additive Alternate #4 – ARMSTRONG COURT DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

AA4 
ARMSTRONG COURT DRAINAGE 
IMPROVEMENTS LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #4  (NUMERICAL) ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #4  (WRITTEN TEXT)________________________________________ 
 
Additive Alternate #5 – OVERLAND DRIVE DIVERSION CULVERT 

 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

AA5 
OVERLAND DRIVE DIVERSION 
CULVERT LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #5  (NUMERICAL) ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #5  (WRITTEN TEXT)________________________________________ 
 
Additive Alternate #6 –LOWER ILIULIUK RIVER IMPROVEMENTS (not grant 
funded) 

 
 

TASK 
NO. 

NAME OF ITEM  
 

UNIT QUANTITY UNIT 
COST 

AMOUNT 

AA6 
LOWER ILIULIUK RIVER 
IMPROVEMENTS LUMP SUM 1  

 

 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #6 (NUMERICAL) ________________________________________ 
 
TOTAL ADDITIVE ALTERNATE #6  (WRITTEN TEXT)________________________________________ 



 
BID FORM 
 00300-9 

 
 
 
 
 
Bidding Company:             
 
 
Name (Printed):              
 
 
Signature:      Date:        
 
 
Contractors License No.      Business License No.       
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